AGREEMENT

Between

CHIEF SCHOOL ADMINISTRATOR

and

EDWARDS-KNOX TEACHERS' ASSOCIATION

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I - RECOGNITION	1
ARTICLE II - ASSOCIATION RIGHTS	1
ARTICLE III - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	4
ARTICLE IV - LEAVES OF ABSENCE	6
ARTICLE V - PERSONNEL	
FILES/EVALUATION/DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL	11
ARTICLE VI - RETIREMENT/TERMINATION BENEFITS	14
ARTICLE VII - LABOR-MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE	15
ARTICLE VIII - FRINGE BENEFITS-HEALTH INSURANCE	15
ARTICLE IX - WORKING CONDITIONS	17
ARTICLE X - COMPENSATION	21
ARTICLE XI - MISCELLANEOUS	26
ARTICLE XII - POSTING	
ARTICLE XIII - PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT & IN-	
SERVICE	27
ARTICLE XIV – DURATION OF AGREEMENT	
APPENDIX A - ANNUAL PROFESSIONAL PERFORMANCE	
REVIEW	29
APPENDIX B - HEDI Conversion Chart - 20% Local Measures	45
APPENDIX C - Conversion Chart - 60% Other Measures	46
APPENDIX D	48

ARTICLE I - RECOGNITION

The Edwards-Knox Central School Board of Education (hereinafter referred to as the Board), hereby recognizes the Edwards-Knox Central School Teachers' Association (hereinafter referred to as the Association) as the exclusive negotiating representative for all terms and conditions of employment of a unit defined as follows:

Included: All regularly employed full-time and part-

time certified instructional personnel, including school counselors, librarians, registered nurses, school psychologists, speech therapist, and occupational therapists.

Excluded: Administrators and all other employees.

for the purposes of negotiations under Article 14 of Civil Service Law of the State of New York as amended.

ARTICLE II - ASSOCIATION RIGHTS

- A. The District shall provide up to five (5) days of released time for Association members to pursue Association business without loss of pay or leave time.
- B. Board Minutes Board minutes and agenda shall be made available electronically to the Association President at the same time as such are made available to Board members.
- C. <u>Contract Reproduction</u> At the conclusion of bargaining each labor agreement, the district shall be responsible for the reproduction of sufficient numbers of the agreement document. At the beginning of each school year the District shall provide the Association President with a supply of the document for each bargaining unit member requesting a contract.

D. <u>Deductions From Salary</u>

- Association dues shall be deducted from semi-monthly paychecks and the total dues
 deduction forwarded to the Association treasurer. Designation and payroll deduction
 forms shall be mutually agreed upon by the Association President and the District
 payroll clerk. It shall be the responsibility of the Association treasurer to notify the
 District of proper dues amounts and changes therein and to provide and keep a current
 list of bargaining unit members electing the payroll deduction method for dues
 payment.
- 2. Deductions for credit unions, tax shelters, or similar purposes shall be afforded to the bargaining unit member upon timely notice to the business office, and to the extent

permitted by existing paycheck slots.

- 3. Direct deposit of paychecks shall be afforded to bargaining unit members to a bank(s) or credit union(s) designated by the District. (It is understood that there will be no change or reduction from those banks and credit unions designated as of April 21, 1987.) Deposits will be available on the date of payroll.
- 4. Monies so deducted shall be promptly remitted to the appropriate entity upon receipt, by the District, of a proper billing therefor.
- 5. Employer Non-Elective Contribution to 403(b) Plan
 - a. <u>Employer Non-Elective Contribution</u> Leave Conversion The Employer agrees to make an Employer Non-elective Contribution to the 403(b) account of each covered employee entitled to a leave conversion under Article VI, Section A of the collective bargaining agreement. Such contribution will be in an amount equal to and in place of the accumulated leave provision under Article VI, Section A of the collective bargaining agreement, subject to the maximum contribution permitted under Section 415(c)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, for the year in which the employee severs employment.
 - b. No Cash Option No employee may receive cash in lieu of or as an alternative to any of the Employer's Non-elective Contribution(s) described herein.
 - c. Contribution Limitations In any applicable year, the maximum Employer Contribution shall not cause an employee's 403(b) account to exceed the applicable contribution limit under Section 415(c)(1) of the Code, as adjusted for cost-of-living increases. For Employer Non-elective Contributions made post-employment to former employees' 403(b) account, the Contribution Limit shall be based on the employee's compensation, as determined under Section 403(b)(3) of the Code and in any event, no Employer Non-elective Contribution shall be made on behalf of such former employee after the fifth taxable year following the taxable year in which that employee terminated employment.

In the event that the calculation of the Employer Non-elective Contribution referenced in any of the preceding paragraphs exceed the applicable Contribution Limits, the excess amount shall be handled by the Employer as follows:

i. For all members in the New York State Teachers' Retirement System ("TRS") with a membership date before June 17, 1971¹, the Employer

¹ Explanation for TRS Categories: Under Education Law § 501(11)(a), the calculation of a pre-June 17, 1971 TRS Tier I member's last five years final average salary (upon which a member's life-time pension is, in part, calculated) includes any non-ordinary income (such as termination pay) which is received as compensation prior to December 31st of the year of retirement. Thus, such a member would benefit from receiving, as compensation, in their final year of employment that portion of the Employer Non-elective contribution, which is in excess of the maximum Contribution Limits of IRC §415. The final average salary of all other members of the TRS (i.e., all TRS members with a membership date on or

shall first make an Employer Non-elective Contribution up to the Contribution Limit of the Internal Revenue Code and then pay any excess amount as compensation directly to the Employee. In no instance shall the Employee have any rights to, including the ability to receive, any excess amount as compensation unless and until the Contribution Limit of the Internal Revenue Code are fully met through payment of the Employer's Non-Elective Contribution; and

- ii. For all members in the New York State Teachers' Retirement System ("TRS") with a membership date in the TRS on or after June 17, 1971, and for all members in the New York State Employees' Retirement System regardless of their membership date, the Employer shall first make an Employer Non-elective Contribution up to the Contribution Limit of the Internal Revenue Code. To the extent that the Employer Non-elective Contribution exceeds the Contribution Limit, such excess shall be reallocated to the Employee the following year as an Employer Non-elective Contribution (which Contribution shall not exceed the maximum amount permitted under the Code), and in January of each subsequent year for up to four (4) years after the year of the Employee's employment severance, until such time as the Employer Non-elective Contribution is fully deposited into the Employee's 403(b) account. In no case shall the Employer Non-elective Contribution exceed the Contribution Limit of the Internal Revenue Code.
- a. 403(b) Accounts Employer contributions shall be deposited into the 403(b) account selected by employee to receive Employer contributions, provided such account will accept Employer Non-elective Contributions. If the employee does not designate a 403(b) account to receive Employer's contributions, or if the account designated will not accept Employer's Non-elective Contributions for any reason, then Employer shall deposit contributions, in the name of the employee, into the endorsed 403(b) program.
- b. This provision shall be subject to IRS regulations and rulings. Should any portion be declared contrary to law, then such portion shall not be deemed valid and subsisting, but all other portions shall continue in full force and effect. As to those portions declared contrary to law, the Association and Employer shall promptly meet and alter those portions in order to provide the same or similar benefit(s) which conform, as closest as possible, to the original intent of the parties.

after June 17, 1971) may <u>not</u> include any form of Termination Pay; therefore, the Employer's post-retirement payment into the employee's 403(b) account of that portion of the Employer Non-elective Contribution, which is in excess of the maximum Contribution Limits of IRC §415, is more advantageous for those member.

- c. The Association will be given one (1) hour with all bargaining unit members and new hires for the purposes of conducting a meeting on the opening Superintendent day(s) before school starts.
- d. This provision shall further be subject to the approval of the 403(b) Provider, which shall review this MOA solely as a matter of form and as the provider of investment products designed to meet the requirements of Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code.
- e. Both the Employer and Employee are responsible for providing accurate information to the 403(b) Provider. This information includes both Elective and Employer Non-Elective Contributions and the amount of the participant's Includible Compensation.
- 6. The District will notify the Association of new hires within fifteen (15) days of BOE approval.
- 7. The District will allow the option of contributions to the NYS Deferred Compensation Plan (457b) via payroll deduction.

E. Facilities

- 1. The Association shall enjoy full use of mailboxes, meeting space and copying facilities for matters related to Association business. The District may set forth reasonable requirements for notice by the Association of its intent to use school meeting space; further, the District may set reasonable charges for use of machinery and supplies.
- 2. The District will solicit input from the Association when planning changes of location and structural changes with respect to the Staff Lounge Facilities and work space.

ARTICLE III - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

A grievance shall mean a claim by any party to this Agreement that there has been a violation, misinterpretation or misapplication of any provision of this Agreement.

Aggrieved party shall mean the party filing a grievance, whether an individual bargaining unit member or the Association.

Should any difference arise between the Board of Education and the Association as to the meaning and application of the provisions of the Agreement, there shall be no suspension of work on account of such differences, but an earnest effort shall be made to settle them promptly in the following manner:

Step 1

- A. Before submission of a written grievance, the aggrieved party must attempt to resolve it informally.
- B. Discussion between the aggrieved party and the Chief School Administrator, at which discussion the bargaining unit member's supervisor, if any, an Association representative, and appropriate witnesses may be present. Request for such hearing shall be in writing and shall be submitted to the Chief School Administrator not more than thirty (30) school days after the aggrieved party became aware, or should have become aware, of the existence of the grievance. The Chief School Administrator shall hold the hearing within five (5) school days of receipt of a formal request for such hearing. Following the hearing, the Chief School Administrator shall have five (5) school days in which to reply in writing to the grievance.

Step 2

If the grievance remains unsettled, the Association shall have fifteen (15) school days from the date of receipt of the Step 1 answer, to which to appeal to the Board for a formal hearing. Such appeal shall be in writing and set forth the specific reasons for requesting such hearing. The Board shall schedule the hearing no later than fifteen (15) school days following receipt of written appeal, such hearing shall be held in executive session. Following the hearing, the Board shall have ten (10) school days to reply in writing to the grievance.

Time Limits

With the exception of grievances filed during the month of June, (when "days" shall mean calendar days) "days" shall mean school days in this article.

Step 3

- A. If the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at Step 2, the grievance may be submitted to arbitration by the Association. The grievance may be submitted to arbitration by written notice to the Board within fifteen (15) school days of the decision at Step 2.
- B. Within five (5) school days after such written notice of submission to arbitration, the Board of Education and the Association will attempt to agree upon a mutually acceptable arbitrator competent in the area of grievance, and will obtain a commitment from said arbitrator to serve. If the parties are unable to agree upon an arbitrator or to obtain such a commitment within ten (10) school days, a request for a list of arbitrators will be made to the American Arbitration Association by either party.
- C. The parties will then be bound by the rules and procedures of the American Arbitration Association in the selection of an arbitrator.

- D. The selected arbitrator will hear the matter promptly and will issue his/her decision within the time period prescribed by the American Arbitration Association. The arbitrator's decision will be in writing and will set forth his/her findings of fact, reasoning and conclusions on the issues.
- E. The arbitrator shall have no power or authority to make any decision which requires the commission of act prohibited by law or which is violative of the terms of this agreement.
- F. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon all parties.
- G. The cost of the services of the arbitrator will be borne equally by the Board and the Association.

ARTICLE IV - LEAVES OF ABSENCE

A. Personal Leave

- 1. A maximum of three (3) days per year, non-cumulative, will be permitted for the purpose of conducting personal affairs of such a nature that they cannot be handled outside of the school day. Request for personal leave shall be made, in email, to the Chief School Administrator or his/her designee at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance. In cases of emergency, the twenty-four (24) hour notice requirement may be waived. Personal leave not used will be credited to accumulated sick leave.
- 2. The exact nature of the use of personal leave need not be stated; however, a bargaining unit member in affixing signature to a request for leave affirms that leave is being taken within the spirit and intent of this provision. Personal leave may not be used to extend a vacation without prior approval of the District Superintendent, except in an emergency. During each school year, bargaining unit members may use one (1) personal day to extend a holiday weekend (Columbus Day, Veterans Day,) Martin Luther King Day and Memorial Day) without prior approval of the District Superintendent. No more than four (4) bargaining unit members per day will be allowed to take advantage of this provision. Selection shall be made on the basis of first requests, made in email after September 1 of the applicable school year: if two (2) requests are made at the same time, selection shall be made based on seniority.
- 3. Any bargaining unit member with seventeen (17) years of teaching experience in the Edwards-Knox or former Edwards Central School or Knox Memorial Central School Districts may convert five (5) unused sick days for one (1) personal day. This conversion may be done only once each year and is not retroactive.

B. Sick Leave

1. Bargaining unit members shall be entitled to twelve (12) days of sick leave per

year, accumulative to a maximum of 212 days, for personal illness or injury of such a nature that the employee is unable to perform his/her regularly assigned duties, or for illness in the immediate family demanding the immediate personal attendance and attention of the employee. Upon returning from a sick leave of three (3) or more consecutive days, the employee will be asked by his/her supervisor to provide a written statement from his/her doctor to confirm that the employee and/or immediate family member has been sick. In the event of an extenuating situation, if a doctor's note isn't appropriate, the circumstances will be presented to the Superintendent for consideration.

Sick leave may also be utilized for necessary medical or dental appointments which cannot be scheduled outside normal working hours.

- 2. Use of sick leave for pregnancy shall be treated in the same manner as for any other disability, to wit: bargaining unit members will need to present to the District a valid doctor's certification indicating that they cannot work in order to use paid sick leave days.
- 3. Sick leave may be taken in increments of a whole, half or quarter day. When possible, requests must be submitted at the beginning of the school day. (The quarter day allotment will sunset at the expiration of this agreement.)
- 4. Bargaining unit members will receive the following payout in the last pay of June for sick leave utilization:

Use of 1 or fewer sick days - \$500

Use of 2-3 sick days -

\$250

C. Bereavement Leave

Up to three (3) days leave at the member's discretion will be granted in each instance of death in the immediate family.

Additional days, if necessary, may be granted at the discretion of the Chief School Administrator.

NOTE: "Immediate Family" for the purposes of sick or bereavement leave, shall be defined as members of the bargaining unit member's immediate household related by blood or marriage, or persons with whom the unit member maintains a close, family relationship. Should a question arise as to the status of an individual identified by a bargaining unit member as immediate family, in a request for sick or bereavement leave, burden shall rest with the unit member to establish the validity of the relationship to the satisfaction of the Chief School Administrator.

D. Parental Leave

- 1. Bargaining unit members will, upon request, be granted leave of absence without pay for a period not to exceed the balance of the school year plus one (1) school year, when birth or adoption occurs during the school year, or for one (1) school year when birth or adoption occurs during the summer.
- 2. Bargaining unit members on parental leave must provide not less than sixty (60) calendar day's prior written notification to the Chief School Administrator of the District indicating their intention to return to work. Bargaining unit members are urged to return at the beginning of a school term, whenever possible.
 - a. Bargaining unit members leaving or returning from parental leave during the school year that have worked less than ninety (90) days and are on step, will remain on step for that year, assuming they return to school within that same school year. The following year the individual will remain on the same step.
 - b. Bargaining unit members leaving or returning from parental leave during the school year that have worked less than ninety (90) days and are not on step, will receive the same rate of pay if they return during the existing school year. In the following year, the individual will receive a salary increment equal to the lesser of:
 - i. the increase of the highest step change moving horizontally across the salary schedule, or
 - ii. the across the board increase negotiated for the unit. Pay increase for individuals receiving a parental leave will only be determined by the above guidelines.

E. General

- 1. The Board of Education, upon the recommendation of the Chief School Administrator, may, at its sole discretion, grant an unpaid leave of absence not to exceed one (1) year to bargaining unit members. Such leave may be renewed for an additional year.
- 2. It is recognized that from time to time, unusual or extenuating situations may arise wherein a bargaining unit member wishes to absent themselves from work for a purpose which may not be permitted by the leave provisions of this Agreement. In such instances, the bargaining unit member may request the Chief School Administrator to authorize such absence. The request for such absence shall be made verbally as far in advance as possible. At the sole discretion of the Chief School Administrator, such absence may be authorized. At the Chief School Administrator's discretion, absence may be deducted from the bargaining unit member's personal and,

if necessary, accumulated sick leave. Each request for absence under this provision shall be judged on its own merit, and shall in no way be precedential in nature. When a bargaining unit member is on an approved unpaid leave, the sick leave day accrual will be reduced *pro rata* based upon the duration of the leave.

This determination of the Chief School Administrator as to whether to permit the absence, or, if granted, whether absence will be with or without pay, shall be final, and may not be the subject of a grievance.

- a. Bargaining unit members leaving or returning from general leave during the school year that have worked less than ninety (90) days and are on step, will remain on step for that year, assuming they return to school within that same school year. The following year the individual will remain on the same step.
- b. Bargaining unit members leaving or returning from general leave during the school year that have worked less than ninety (90) days and are not on step, will receive the same rate of pay if they return during the existing school year. In the following year, the individual will receive a salary increment equal to the lesser of:
 - i. the increase of the highest step change moving horizontally across the salary schedule, or
 - ii. the across the board increase negotiated for the bargaining unit members. Pay increase for individuals receiving a general leave will only be determined by the above guidelines.

The District agrees to abide by all terms and conditions of the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 as amended.

F. Sabbatical Leave

- 1. Sabbatical leave, upon the recommendation of the Chief School Administrator may be granted by the Board for one-half year at full-pay or one (1) full year at half-pay.
- 2. Eligibility for sabbatical leave shall be restricted to tenured faculty with fifteen (15) or more years' local service who have not had a sabbatical leave during the previous seven-year period.
- 3. Requests for sabbatical leave must be submitted in writing prior to February 1st of the year preceding the academic year in which the leave is sought.
- 4. The application for sabbatical leave must include the period of time for which the leave is requested together with a detailed outline of the purposes of said leave.
- 5. Such outline shall include information concerning the program of educational, travel,

teaching or other experiences that are to be undertaken during the sabbatical leave together with a detailed analysis showing how this program will improve the bargaining unit member's instruction upon return to the classroom.

- 6. Sabbatical leave shall not be granted to more than one (1) bargaining unit member during any one (1) academic year or semester.
- 7. When more qualified applications are received than there are available openings, a committee composed of two (2) members of the Board, the Chief School Administrator and two (2) bargaining unit members appointed by the Association will select the individuals for whom Board approval of leaves will be recommended.
 - i. Such selection shall be on the basis of benefit to the school district, benefit to the bargaining unit member, length of service in the district, and time elapsed since last sabbatical leave. The selection shall be made known prior to the first of May.
- 8. Salary paid during this period may be considered a loan and secured by a note executed by the bargaining unit member to the Board. The note may provide for its cancellation upon the completion of two (2) years of service to the District following the leave. Failure by the bargaining unit member to return to the District for the full two (2) years may result in the loan being considered due and payable on a pro-rated basis whereby each two (2) pay periods worked will cancel the value of one pay period's receipts during the sabbatical.
- 9. Contributions to health insurance, retirement and other fringe benefits shall continue without interruption except that during the leave, sick leave shall not be accumulated nor be available for use by the bargaining unit member.
- 10. Upon completion of the leave, the bargaining unit member shall be placed on the appropriate step of the salary schedule as if service had been continuous.

G. Military Service

Bargaining unit members will be entitled to all legally mandated benefits in compliance with the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act and with New York State Military Law Section 242.

H. Sick Leave Bank

A sick leave bank shall be made available to all bargaining unit members. The bank shall consist solely of donations of accumulated sick leave from participating bargaining unit members.

A committee of four (4), two (2) chosen by the administration and two (2) chosen by the Association shall be responsible for the operation and enforcement of the bank's

guidelines.

(Suggested guidelines shall be developed by this committee for review and approval by the Board of Education and the bargaining unit members).

The committee shall be responsible for transmitting accurate, up-to-date records on a monthly basis of bank activity to the appropriate district official.

Any dispute involving operation of the pool shall be the sole responsibility of the committee, and is specifically excluded from the grievance procedure of this agreement.

Retiring members may donate up to ten (10) days of accrued time to the sick bank. Resigning members may not leave accrued days to the bank.

I. <u>Professional/Conference/Visitation Day</u>

- 1. Conferences Bargaining unit members are encouraged to attend conferences, subject to prior administrative or board approval, for the purpose of self-improvement or service to the profession at District expense, within budgetary limitations. Every effort will be made to provide thirty (30) days advance request for conference approval.
- 2. Visitation Days Subject to prior administrative approval, and consistent with the educational needs of the District, bargaining unit members may be granted released time to visit other districts to observe programs and classes within their area of assignment.
- 3. Professional Days Bargaining unit members may request, in writing, days for professional reasons at no expense to the District, other than the cost of a substitute, and at no loss of personal leave time, or salary, to the bargaining unit member. (i.e., curriculum days, grade-level meetings, in-district meetings, IEP and data reporting.)
- J. Paid sick leave may be used for parental leave of up to ten (10) days for a custodial parent other than the birthing mother. This leave must follow the same rules and regulations as the "Family and Medical Leave Act" regarding eligibility.

ARTICLE V - PERSONNEL FILES/EVALUATION/DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL

A. Personnel Files

1. All data maintained by the District on bargaining unit members relative to employment, promotion, discipline, evaluation and all other job-related matters -- exclusive of

confidential references and communications received in connection with the initial employment -- shall be placed in a single file and maintained in the central office, and shall be kept locked at all times.

- 2. No material derogatory to a bargaining unit member's conduct, service, character or personality shall be placed in his/her personnel file unless the bargaining unit member has had an opportunity to review the material. The bargaining unit member shall acknowledge that he/she has had the opportunity to review such material by affirming his/her signature to the copy to be filed with the express understanding that such a signature in no way indicates agreement with the contents thereof, and such signature may not be withheld. The bargaining unit member shall also have the right to submit a written answer to such material and his/her answer shall be reviewed by the Chief School Administrator and attached to the file copy.
- 3. The bargaining unit member shall have the right upon request to review the contents of his/her personnel file. Furthermore, the bargaining unit member shall be allowed to make single copies of any document therein. Additional copies shall be at the bargaining unit member's expense. The bargaining unit member shall be entitled to have a representative of the Association accompany him/her during such review. Such review shall be made in the presence of a designated school official, and shall be at a mutually agreeable time. Otherwise, access to the files shall be limited to proper school officials.
- 4. With the exception of written observation reports of classroom performance, a bargaining unit member may resort to the grievance procedure for determination of material believed to be inaccurate or not based upon fact. Such material, if proven to be inaccurate or not based upon fact, whether by grievance or other means, shall be removed.
- 5. Before any material concerning a complaint by a parent or student is placed in a bargaining unit member's file, the bargaining unit member will be afforded an opportunity to reply to same by attaching a written statement of explanation or defense.
- 6. An incident which has not been reduced to writing within thirty (30) school days of its occurrence or discovery, whichever is later and exclusive of the summer vacation period, shall not be placed in the file. This does not preclude the practice by the Administration of keeping a record of a series of relatively minor incidents. The bargaining unit member shall be warned that continuation of these offenses shall result in a notation being placed in the bargaining unit member's file. Before such a record may be used as part of any action against a bargaining unit member, it must be placed in the bargaining unit member's file in accordance with paragraph 2 above.

B. Cameras

Cameras installed in instructional areas, including the gym, will not be used for the evaluation or observation of bargaining unit members. Footage from cameras installed in instructional areas will not be used in the discipline of bargaining unit members unless a specific documented incident has been reported. In this case, the bargaining unit members

will have the opportunity to view the footage with his/her representative.

C. Bargaining Unit Member Evaluation

- 1. No bargaining unit member shall suffer any professional disadvantages by reason of his or her membership in the Association or participation in its lawful activities.
- 2. Definition of Covered Teachers/ Annual Professional Performance Review(APPR)

Classroom teachers as defined in 3012-c will be evaluated using the APPR Agreement in Appendix A

D. Discipline/Dismissal

- 1. Should it become necessary to officially reprimand or censure, fine, suspend without pay or dismiss a teacher, progressive discipline involving the following procedure will be followed:
 - a. Bargaining unit members shall have been informed of the performance standard expected in all areas of responsibility.
 - b. Bargaining unit members shall have been notified in writing of his/her failure to meet standard(s).
 - c. District shall substantiate that despite warning teacher has failed to correct deficiency.
 - d. Bargaining unit members shall receive supervisory assistance when needed.
- 2. Exceptions to the above procedure shall be as follows:
 - a. Conviction of a felony.
 - b. Proof of being under the influence of alcohol, illegal drugs or hallucinogens while on school grounds during the school day or at any time while supervising students on an assigned or voluntary basis in connection with school-sponsored activities.
 - c. Failure to maintain certification, or failure to obtain certification within statutory time limits.
 - d. Proven immoral behavior involving students.
- 3. In case of a grievance over discipline or dismissal, either the Association or the District may submit the matter to arbitration, through the grievance procedure. The decision of the arbitrator shall be limited solely to procedural questions, and shall be constrained

from ruling on questions of administrative judgment, or degree of discipline imposed. With respect to discipline or dismissal, should the parties agree to elect Arbitration, it shall be the sole and exclusive remedy available. It is further recognized that the granting of tenure is the sole prerogative of the Board of Education.

- 4. A decision by the District to deny tenure is not subject to the grievance procedure except under the following circumstances:
 - a. Failure of District to adhere to the evaluation procedure.
 - b. Failure to abide by the personnel file provisions contained herein.

ARTICLE VI - RETIREMENT/TERMINATION BENEFITS

- A. All bargaining unit members who have served twenty (20) years or more in the Edwards-Knox (or separate Edwards and Knox Memorial) School District shall, upon retirement, be entitled to a non-elective contribution to his/her 403(b) account, for accrued and unused sick leave to a maximum of 180 days, as follows:
 - 1. The employee will be credited \$100 per day for those sick-leave days which accrued during the employee's last year of service preceding the employee's retirement, which were not used by the employee during that last year of service; and
 - 2. The employee will be credited \$65.00 per day for the remainder of such days.

Those monies to be paid by the District pursuant to this subparagraph A hereof shall be paid, in each and every case, directly to the retiring employee's Internal Revenue Code 403(b) account.

- B. A bargaining unit member who retires under terms of the NYSTRS or NYSERS shall have his/her individual health plan paid for by the District, at the current rate of contribution, as detailed in Article VIII, 3. b. (This benefit is not available except for unit members taking a NYSTRS or NYS ERS pension.)
- C. Upon retirement, a bargaining unit member will be entitled to a non-elective contribution to his/her 403(b) account in the amount of \$10,000, as a longevity benefit, if the following requirements are met:
 - 1. The effective date of retirement must be within the first year of eligibility without penalty or earlier (minimum age of 55) according to the guidelines set by the New York State Teachers' Retirement System.
 - 2. For each year of service less than thirty (30) years, the incentive shall be reduced by \$1,000. This part of the incentive will sunset at the expiration of this contract (June

30, 2019).

- 3. The bargaining unit member shall have completed at least fifteen (15) years of full-time service in the Edwards-Knox Central School District (or separate Edwards and Knox Memorial) by the effective date of retirement.
- 4. Written notice of retirement to the Superintendent by March 1, of the fiscal year prior to the effective date of retirement.
- 5. The bargaining unit member may receive payment in any reasonable manner requested at any time during or spread over the year of impact of the retirement incentive, during the last year of employment.

ARTICLE VII - LABOR-MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Labor-Management Committee shall be composed of four members appointed by the Association, and four representatives of the District, including the Superintendent and at least one member of the Board of Education. This Committee shall meet four (4) times per year (once per school year quarter). The schedule shall be mutually developed by the Association President and the Superintendent, and will be set prior to September 30 of each year. Written notification of matters intended to be discussed shall be exchanged at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of each scheduled meeting's commencement. The meetings shall be at a mutually agreeable time and shall be no longer than one (1) hour in length. The purpose of the meetings is to discuss matters of interest and concern to Bargaining Unit Members, administrators and the Board of Education in a problem-solving mode. The Committee shall have no power to alter or amend this Agreement.

ARTICLE VIII - FRINGE BENEFITS-HEALTH INSURANCE

A. <u>Health Insurance</u>

The parties agree to move back to the SLL BOCES Health Consortium Rider 10. Active employees and retirees will continue to pay twelve percent (12%) toward the applicable HI pure premium. Over 65 retirees eligible for Medicare as of June 21, 2022 will pay the same dollar amount as was paid in 2021-2022 school year for the 2022-2023 school year. In future school years, the dollar amount of the contribution will increase by the same percentage increase as the SLL BOCES HI Premium.

The employee will make this contribution by payroll deduction.

1. Bargaining unit members will be allowed to participate in the 125 Flex Plan through the St. Lawrence-Lewis BOCES, effective 09-01-05. Participants will pay for the

administrative fees associated with said Flex Plan.

- 2. If an employee's/retiree's spouse and/or dependents have access to employer-paid or partially-paid health insurance within the St. Lawrence-Lewis Counties School Plan, the rules for coordination of benefits that follow shall apply. The goal of these provisions is to provide full, unduplicated and uninterrupted coverage to all Edwards-Knox unit members and retirees, their spouses, and dependents at minimum cost to the District. No provision shall be construed to allow unit members and retirees, their spouses and/or dependents to profit from their access to coverage by accepting buyouts or receiving other salary or benefits that transfer the burden of additional cost to the Edwards-Knox District.
 - a. No duplicate coverage within the Plan will be allowed.
 - b. Spouses and dependents must avail themselves of all health insurance benefits available to them as bargaining unit members and/or dependents of bargaining unit members in other districts within the plan.
 - c. The birthday rule will apply in determining dependent coverage.
 - d. In-Network buyouts shall continue, subject to the following:
 - If the Edwards-Knox Central School District should be assessed additional penalties or should the District be required to share premium costs with other school districts within the St. Lawrence-Lewis Medical Employer Health Plan, the in network buyouts referred to in Article VIII B hereof will, at the option of the District, be eliminated.
 - e. Any unit member who retired prior to July 1, 2004, who was at the time of retirement contributing zero percent (0%) will continue to contribute zero percent (0%); any unit member who retired on or after July 1, 2004 but prior to July 1, 2013, will continue to pay ten percent (10%) of the pure premium cost of his/her enrollment; any unit member who retires on or after July 1, 2013, will pay the same percentage as was paid during that unit member's final year of service to the District.
 - f. All bargaining unit members need to be employed with the District for at least fifteen (15) years immediately preceding the employee's retirement in order to receive health insurance benefits upon retirement, which such retirement must be pursuant to the New York State retirement program.
 - g. The District shall contribute twenty-five dollars (\$25) per year for each bargaining unit member participating in the District dental insurance program.
- A. The District will allow, at the bargaining unit members' option, who can demonstrate that they have health coverage through a plan other than through the Edwards-Knox Central School District plan, an annual buy-out of the employees' health insurance based upon the

following formula:

- 1. The District will pay bargaining unit members \$4,000 for a buy-out of their family plan with no other coverage.
- 2. The District will pay bargaining unit members \$3,000 for a buy-out of their single plan with no other coverage.
- 3. The District will pay bargaining unit members \$2,000 for a buy-out of converting from a family plan to a single plan or from a double to single in the insurance plan.

All such buy-outs are for twelve (12) months.

ARTICLE IX - WORKING CONDITIONS

A. Work Day

1. The work day for bargaining unit members in the Edwards-Knox Central School District shall not exceed seven and one half (7½) hours per day on Monday through Friday. All teachers are requested to be in their rooms five (5) minutes prior to school starting, ready to receive and supervise students. The District will set the starting and ending times of the 7½-work day each school year. Bargaining Unit Members have a professional obligation to stay after school when there is a need for a parent meeting. Such meetings will be held at a mutually agreeable time and date. A supervised area will be provided for school-aged children of bargaining unit members from 7:25 A.M. to 7: 55 A.M. in two (2) separate designated areas (PK-6 7-12) agreed upon by the District and the Association.

Child care will be permitted for school aged children of bargaining unit members from 7:25 A.M. to 7:55 A.M. in a designated area agreed upon by the District and the Union.

- 2. Buses will leave by 2:55 P.M. each day. The time between 7:25 A.M. and 7:55 A.M. will be used as follows:
 - a. Monday and Wednesday of each week the time will be used for teacher planning.
 - b. Tuesday and Thursday of each week will be used for administrative purposes including, but not limited to faculty meetings, professional development, team meetings, additional planning, curriculum work, Shared Decision Making meetings, etc.
 - c. Two (2) Fridays each month mutually agreed upon between the District and the Association will be allowed for the discretionary late arrival of teachers at 7:55 A.M.

- 3. Bargaining unit members will have no formally assigned students between 7:25 A.M. and 7:55 A.M. However, bargaining unit members have the option of working with students during this time.
- 4. Work Day Bargaining unit members will report at 7:55 A.M. on the 1st and 3rd Friday every month on semesters 1 and 3 and the 2rd and 4th Friday every month on semesters two and four (2 and 4). If there is a snow day or holiday, there will be no additional giveback days.

Excluded from this are:

- 5. Detention Bargaining unit members, with the exception of the school nurse, in both high school and elementary will monitor two (2) nights of student detention for a period of time not to exceed 4:10 P.M. and in accordance with mutually developed detention guidelines pertaining to the working conditions of the teachers involved. Each level will have up to twelve (12) students. If one level has no students, they may be given students from the other level in cases where the number of students in the other level exceeds the maximum listed above. The levels will not be fully combined (i.e., Pre-K-12), but may be staggered (i.e., Grades 5-8 and 9-12). Only the overflow students will be sent to the other level. An administrator will be available at all times during the duration of detention, and teachers will be provided with a radio so they may communicate with said administrator.
- 6. Bargaining unit members must sign up for one (1) after school extracurricular duty during a school year. Bargaining unit members will be paid for this duty at the chaperone rate according to the extracurricular pay schedule. These duties will include basketball games (V/JV), concerts, art shows, etc. Class fundraising events, with the exception of dances will not be included (i.e., fun nights, etc.). An administrator will be present at all events. Bargaining unit members will not be assigned if an event does not have a chaperone. A sign-up sheet of events will be posted in September similar to detention sign-up lists.
- 7. Within the first two (2) weeks of school, a two (2) hour open house will occur at a date and time mutually agreeable between the District and the Association.
- 8. <u>Open House/Conference Times</u> Open House and Conference times will be held during the school year for Pre-K through grade 12, according to the following schedule:
 - a. Fall Conferences: Joint conferences will follow the ten (10) week marking period, and happen during regular school hours with two (2) consecutive half days for parent conferences. One (1) will take place as a late arrival, and one (1) will take place as an early dismissal. The District is responsible for the scheduling of these conferences. The conference schedule may be changed upon mutual agreement of both parties.
 - b. The Spring Conference: Pre-K through grade 12 conferences will be tied to the

twenty-five (25) week marking period as scheduled by the District, with students with a late arrival at 11:10 A.M. half-day. The spring conference time will be from 3:30 P.M. to 7:30 P.M. The conference schedule may be changed upon mutual agreement of both parties.

- c. A schedule of these dates will be included in the faculty handbook.
- 9. <u>Emergencies</u> Other unavoidable emergency meetings due to unforeseen crisis/circumstances.

B. Planning

- 1. Planning Time Every bargaining unit member shall be provided with one daily instructional period for planning and preparation (i.e., five (5) periods per week) with no scheduled teaching duties. This time shall be protected from supervisory duties and shall be in addition to the thirty (30) minute duty-free lunch period. The District will determine the time the bargaining unit members take their lunch break.
- 2. Secondary-Class Assignments/Class Size Beginning no later than March 1st and finishing no later than June 1st of each school year the secondary administrator and the guidance counselor will meet with the staff. The bargaining unit members will be provided with current student numbers and requests for classes for the next school year. Together as a "team" discussion will be held to determine which bargaining unit members will be assigned which classes/levels. Some components to be used as guides will be size of classes; testing requirements; personal choice: personal area of expertise or experience; etc. In the event that the team is not able to reach consensus the administrator will make a decision and a minority report may be sent to the Superintendent. By June 14th the master schedule/class assignments/class size lists will be determined, printed and distributed to staff.
- 3. Elementary/High School Bargaining Unit Member Assignments/Reassignments Elementary and High School bargaining unit members shall be notified in writing no later than June 14th of their assignments and schedules for the coming school year. If changes in enrollment, or scheduling, occur between June 14th and September 1st which cause a bargaining unit member's assignment to change, the bargaining unit member will be notified in writing as soon as possible of the change.
- 4. Teachers who are required to change classrooms from one (1) school year to the next will receive two (2) summer work days paid at the rate of one hundred dollars (\$100) per day.
- 5. Teachers who are required to change content area from one (1) school year to the next will receive (2) summer work days paid at the member's per diem rate.

C. Work Load

1. <u>Secondary</u> - Bargaining unit members shall be assigned no more than six (6) teaching periods per day. Excluded from these limits are labs and special area subjects.

Bargaining unit members may voluntarily agree, in writing, to teach beyond these limits.

- 2. <u>Elementary</u> After consultation between and consensus with the bargaining unit members directly affected and administration, class sizes may be different as students will be placed in classrooms that are appropriate in terms of their needs. No elementary bargaining unit member will lose his or her only planning period due to a special area bargaining unit member's absence.
- 3. <u>Bargaining Unit Member Planning Day</u> The administration will schedule shortened school days (1/2 days without students) for curriculum work, grade level and departmental meetings, and staff development, but not for faculty meetings. The Chief School Officer, or designee, will provide two (2) weeks' notice for each shortened school day and will schedule those days as follows:
 - a. The final week of quarter 1, 2, and 3. This ½ day will be scheduled prior to the last day of the marking period in case of a snow day. If the scheduled day happens to fall on a snow day, it will be rescheduled during that marking period;
 - b. At the District's discretion, up to two (2) additional shortened days may be scheduled in a given school year for these same purposes.
 - c. If the shortened school day falls on a snow day, the shortened day will be rescheduled by mutual agreement of the parties.

D. Loss or Damage to Personal Belongings

Bargaining unit members shall be reimbursed for reasonable cost of replacement or repair of clothing, eyeglasses, dentures, prosthetic devices, or hearing aids damaged or destroyed directly as a result of their performance or their assigned duties. Burden of proof shall rest wholly with the bargaining unit member that damage occurred in the line of duty.

The bargaining unit member shall have the obligation to report incidents involving damage or destruction of such items within five (5) school days of the occurrence.

E. <u>Requisitions</u>

Bargaining unit members shall be provided the opportunity for input if textbooks, materials, or supplies are to be changed, modified, canceled or delayed.

F. Unused Emergency Days

Utilization of unused emergency closing days shall be discussed by the Joint Labor-Management Committee prior to Spring Break with a recommendation to the Board of Education for final determination.

G. Mileage Reimbursement

Subject to the prior approval of the Superintendent, bargaining unit members who travel and use their personal car on District business shall be reimbursed for mileage at the prevailing IRS rate.

H. On-line learning

Will be used to provide students with enrichment or credit recovery in the case of a student transfer situation or a classified student who needs a course that is not offered in the District at the time. Online classes will not be used for current EK students who have failed a class unless there is mutual agreement between the EKTA and the District. Online learning will not be used to replace classes that have been previously taught by bargaining unit members (*with the exception of Spanish IV) unless there is mutual agreement between the EKTA and the District.

* This will sunset at the expiration of this contract (June 30, 2019).

I. W.S.I./Lifeguard/Lifeguard Instructor

Upon notification by the District, physical education bargaining unit members who are physically able (not disabled) shall promptly acquire and maintain Water Safety Instructor certification, Life Guard certification and Life Guard Instructor certification. The District will reimburse the bargaining unit member who successfully acquires such certificates for the tuition costs attendant to same.

ARTICLE X - COMPENSATION

a. Bargaining unit members shall have the option of being paid either twenty-one (21) or twenty-six (26) paychecks, paychecks, bi-weekly. Paychecks will be issued the morning of the payroll check date at 8:00 A.M.

All persons covered by the recognition clause should be placed at a ten (10) month salary and receive the twenty-one (21) or twenty-six (26) pays for that period. Those employees

who work more than ten (10) months (School Counselor, Psychologist and Nurse) should receive separate paychecks at a rate of 1/200th of their ten (10) month salary per day worked.

In order to verify the accuracy of paychecks, bargaining unit members will be provided by the second paycheck of October each year with a statement that includes the following information: (1) their total annual salary; (2) step (if any) of the salary schedule on which they are being paid; (3) the number of graduate hours for which they are being paid; (4) whether they are being paid for having a Master's degree; (5) any longevity increments they are being paid; (6) number of days of accumulated sick leave, and (7) number of additional sick leave days available for current school year. Upon receipt of this information, the bargaining unit member must review its accuracy and indicate on a form provided by the District whether it is correct; if the bargaining unit member believes it is incorrect, the bargaining unit member must provide information to correct the inaccuracies within twenty (20) days, in writing. If incorrect pay continues in the subsequent paycheck, the matter shall be resolved using the Grievance Procedure, Article III. The Association president shall be provided a report containing the above information for all bargaining unit members concurrent with their receipt of the information.

b. Salary

The base salaries of all Edwards-Knox bargaining unit members shall be increased by:

2022-2023	4.0% inclusive of step, plus a one-time payment of \$1,500 (not to base)
2023-2024	4.0% inclusive of step, plus a one-time payment of \$1,000 (not to base)
2024-2025	3.5% inclusive of the cost of step

Bargaining Unit Members will receive the following longevity payments:

20+ Years of service in the District - \$,1000 annually 25+ Years of service in the District - Additional \$1,000 Annually

Summer work days approved in advance in writing by administration will be paid at the bargaining unit member's per diem rate to a maximum of five (5) days, to include days paid for a content area changes in Article IX.B.5.

The salary schedule for on-step bargaining unit members is as shown:

Step	2021-2022	2022-2023	2023-202	2024-2025
1	\$46,074	\$46,995	\$47,935	\$48,774
2	\$46,866	\$47,917	\$48,875	\$49,852
3	\$47,672	\$48,741	\$49,833	\$50,830
4	\$48,492	\$49,579	\$50,690	\$51,827
5	\$49,268	\$50,432	\$51,562	\$52,718
6	\$50,141	\$51,239	\$52,449	\$53,625
7	\$51,071	\$52,146	\$53,288	\$54,547
8	\$52,604	\$53,114	\$54,232	\$55,420
9	\$53,458	\$54,708	\$55,238	\$56,401
10	\$54,434	\$55,596	\$56,897	\$57,448
11	\$55,396	\$56,611	\$57,820	\$59,173
12	\$56,481	\$57,612	\$58,875	\$60,133
13	\$57,590	\$58,741	\$59,916	\$61,230
14	\$58,724	\$59,894	\$61,090	\$62,313
15	\$59,882	\$61,073	\$62,289	\$63,534
16	\$61,078	\$62,277	\$63,516	\$64,781
17	\$62,280	\$63,521	\$64,768	\$66,057
18	\$63,510	\$64,771	\$66,062	\$67,359
19	\$64,759	\$66,050	\$67,362	\$68,705
20	\$66,060	\$67,349	\$68,692	\$70,057
21	\$67,388	\$68,702	\$70,043	\$71,440
22	\$68,769	\$70,083	\$71,450	\$72,845

Members Off-Schedule will receive the following raises:

2022-2023	4%
2023-2024	4%
2024-2025	3 500

All Members will receive as a one-time payment the following amount of money:

2022-2023 \$1,500 2023-2024 \$1,000

Salaries of off-step bargaining unit members shall be computed for all three years except for increases in graduate hour pay or pay for Masters, which is additional.

[&]quot;Breakage" from personnel leaving the district accrue to the benefit of the district for the district.

- 1. Graduate hours shall be reimbursed at \$35 per graduate hour to a maximum of sixty (60) hours subject to the following conditions:
 - a. Must be graduate hours leading to permanent certification in teacher's current area of assignment at Edwards-Knox Central School, or
 - b. Must be graduate hours in bargaining unit member's current area of certification and/or assignment, or
 - c. Must have prior written approval of the Superintendent, in which case hours may be graduate or undergraduate.
 - d. Bargaining unit members hired before July 1, 2015 who are on step, upon completion of their Master's Degree, will have \$200 added to their annual salary. This shall not be accumulative year to year, but shall remain at \$200 each year.

Proof of successful completion of course work for payment must be made within one month of the beginning of the school year for payment for that school year.

2. Extra-Curricular Salary Schedule

Category	Percentage of Step 5
1	12.0%
1a	8.8%
2	7.8%
3	7.5%
4	4.1%
5	3.7%
6	3.3%
7	2.9%
Category	Percentage of Step 5
8	1.13%
9	0.11% per event
10.	0.1% per event

- 1. Athletic Director (Athletic Director One (1) additional release period on the last period of the day, if possible. If the last period of the day is not possible, the second to last period will be used.)
- 1a. Basketball (Boys' and Girls'), Marching Band Director, Cheerleading
- 2. Soccer, Volleyball, Baseball, Softball, Swimming, E-Sports (Paid as modified sports amount.)
- 3. Summer School Teachers (Elementary and High School)
- 4. Senior Class Advisor (Junior = 75%, Sophomore = 50%, Freshman = 25%, Eight Grade = 35%, Seventh Grade = 35% of Senior amount)
- 5. Drama Director, Musical (Production) Director, Music Director (75% of Musical Director), Choreographer (50% of Musical Director) (Musical production positions must be filled by three (3) separate people)

- 6. Color Guard
- 7. Yearbook (Assistant Yearbook = 50%), Golf, Computer, Student Government, Senior Play Director (Assistant Director = 60%)
- 8. SAT (Math and/or Verbal), National Honor Society, Speech and Debate
- 9. Fifth and Sixth Grade Basketball (Boys and Girls), Bookkeeper
- 10. Timers, Scorers, Chaperones
- 11. All after-school club advisors per night (including Whiz Quiz and FFA after school)

Other – Junior Varsity – 80% of Varsity, Modified = 65% of Varsity, Summer Music Lessons = $1/200^{th}$ of salary per day, AD summer pay = $1/200^{th}$ of salary per day (up to five (5) days), FFA = $1/200^{th}$ of salary per day (up to twenty (20) days per year with prior approval of Superintendent)

Each advisor will submit an annual record with dates of club meetings.

At the option of the Association, all coaches, advisers, directors, etc., will be paid in the same manner (lump sum, as two (2) pays [1/2 way and at the end]) or have their pay evenly divided over the course of the season.

Any new positions in the extra-curricular area shall have their salaries negotiated onto one of the above levels most closely reflecting the position's hours, number of practices, competitive season length, etc. Unit members will submit a proposal through the Association to administration for consideration with final approval by the board of education.

Except for class advisors, all extra-curricular positions shall be named prior to July 1st.

Certified and qualified EKTA bargaining unit members will have first option on all extracurricular positions, and coaching positions.

Subject to the foregoing, the decision as to whether or not to make such appointments to such positions and the identity of those appointed to such positions shall be in the sole and exclusive discretion of the Board of Education on an annual basis.

c. Tax Sheltered Annuities

Those twenty-six (26) Tax Sheltered Annuity companies presently providing services to the bargaining unit, as of July 1, 2004, shall be continued upon the District's list of eligible payroll deduction providers. Effective July 1, 2012, any new enrollment shall be with a preferred provider as approved by the District's third party administrator. In any and all events, whenever any such listed eligible tax sheltered annuity provider company ceases to be utilized by any bargaining unit employee, that company may be deleted from the District's list of eligible providers.

Notwithstanding the foregoing and in any event, tax shelter annuity companies will be

limited to only those companies that meet all of the requirements as set forth by the Internal Revenue Service in conjunction with the District's third-party administrator. The selection of an administration other than OMNI will be only after input from the Union. Reasonable efforts will be made by the District to ensure that there are a minimum of five (5) providers.

ARTICLE XI - MISCELLANEOUS

A. Amendments to this Agreement, or alterations of any term or condition of employment, may be made only by the parties, in writing.

B. Savings and Separability Clause

If any Article or Section of this Agreement, or any Riders thereto, should be held invalid by operation of law or by any tribunal of competent jurisdiction, or if compliance with or enforcement of any Article or Section should be restrained by such tribunal, pending a final determination as to its validity, the remainder of this Agreement and of any Rider thereto, or the application of such Article or Section to persons or circumstances other than those to which it has been held invalid, or to which compliance with or enforcement of has been restrained, shall not be affected thereby. In the event any article or section is held invalid, or enforcement of or compliance with any has been restrained, the parties hereto shall enter into immediate collective bargaining negotiations, upon the request of the Union, for the purpose of arriving at a mutually satisfactory replacement for such Article or Section during the period of invalidity or restraint.

C. <u>Legislative Action</u>

It is agreed by and between the parties that any provision of this Agreement requiring legislative action to permit its implementation by amendment of law or by providing the additional funds therefore, shall not become effective until the appropriate legislative body has given approval.

D. Unless amended by the parties pursuant to XI-A above, this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect through June 30, 2025, when it expires. Notification of intent to bargain a successor agreement shall be made by the Association no later than March 1, 2025.

ARTICLE XII - POSTING

The Association President shall be notified by emailing to the Association President's District email address, of any vacancy in existing bargaining unit member positions or of any new bargaining unit member position prior to advertising the position to the general public.

ARTICLE XIII - PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT & IN-SERVICE

- A. 1. Mentor Selection and Assignment The District will accept letters of interest for mentors within two (2) weeks of the Board of Education announcement of a new hire. Any Edwards-Knox certified tenured bargaining unit member may submit a letter of interest. The mentor will be chosen on the basis of his/her willingness to fulfill this role, teaching skills, interpersonal skills, and availability. The District reserves the right to assign the position to any tenured Edwards-Knox teacher. Such assignments are not subject to the grievance process set forth in Article III of this Agreement.
 - 2. <u>Release Time</u> The District will schedule one (1) half day of release time per semester from the regular teaching responsibilities for each mentor and mentee to conduct the observation referred to in B.2. of this Article and to conference for the purpose of the mentor providing the mentee with professional advice and guidance.
 - 3. <u>Compensation</u> The Mentor Coordinator and Mentors will be compensated as follows:
 - 4. Literacy Coordinator \$2,000 annual stipend Mentor Coordinator 2.9% of Step 5 Mentor 1.13% of Step 5

B. Evaluation of a New Teacher

- 1. The Mentoring Program is not to interfere, alter, or jeopardize the formal evaluation procedure as stated in Article V., B. Teacher Evaluation of this agreement.
- 2. The mentor will observe the new bargaining unit member at least one time in each assigned semester of the school year, preparing a written report for the new teacher. This observation must occur before the first formal observation, as per Article V, B. 4. This written report is to provide information to the teacher and not to replace, or supersede in any way, the administrator's evaluation process.
- 3. The observation report, reflecting the new bargaining unit member's strengths and areas in need of improvement, will include but not be limited to the following areas: lesson planning, classroom management and organization, student behavior management, record keeping, knowledge of content and pedagogical skills. The new bargaining unit member's plan for improvement in any area indicating needed improvement will be clearly defined in the written report.
- 4. The mentor will conference with the new bargaining unit member, reviewing the observation report, prior to the submission of the report to the administrator. In addition, the mentor is expected to attend the scheduled monthly meetings of the District's mentors, mentees, and administrative staff.

ARTICLE XIV – DURATION OF AGREEMENT

This period of this Agreement shall extend from	July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2025. In witness
whereof, the parties have executed this document	t by their duly authorized representatives this
9th day of February	, 2023.
s: 1 / 2 1	Siam A.
Signed: Crin E. Woods	Signed: MPlet
Erin E. Woods	Jennifer Impey, President
Superintendent of Schools	Edwards-Knox Teachers' Association
Edwards-Knox Central School District	Š

APPENDIX A - ANNUAL PROFESSIONAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW

This section was moved to the back of the agreement and will be modified once the newly created APPR language is agreed upon.

A. Personnel Files

- 1. All data maintained by the District on bargaining unit members relative to employment, promotion, discipline, evaluation and all other job-related matters -- exclusive of confidential references and communications received in connection with the initial employment -- shall be placed in a single file and maintained in the central office, and shall be kept locked at all times.
- 2. No material derogatory to a bargaining unit member's conduct, service, character or personality shall be placed in his/her personnel file unless the bargaining unit member has had an opportunity to review the material. The bargaining unit member shall acknowledge that he/she has had the opportunity to review such material by affirming his/her signature to the copy to be filed with the express understanding that such a signature in no way indicates agreement with the contents thereof, and such signature may not be withheld. The bargaining unit member shall also have the right to submit a written answer to such material and his/her answer shall be reviewed by the Chief School Administrator and attached to the file copy.
- 3. The bargaining unit member shall have the right upon request to review the contents of his/her personnel file. Furthermore, the bargaining unit member shall be allowed to make single copies of any document therein. Additional copies shall be at the bargaining unit member's expense. The bargaining unit member shall be entitled to have a representative of the Association accompany him/her during such review. Such review shall be made in the presence of a designated school official, and shall be at a mutually agreeable time. Otherwise, access to the files shall be limited to proper school officials.
- 4. With the exception of written observation reports of classroom performance, a bargaining unit member may resort to the grievance procedure for determination of material believed to be inaccurate or not based upon fact. Such material, if proven to be inaccurate or not based upon fact, whether by grievance or other means, shall be removed.
- 5. Before any material concerning a complaint by a parent or student is placed in a bargaining unit member's file, the bargaining unit member will be afforded an opportunity to reply to same by attaching a written statement of explanation or defense.
- 6. An incident which has not been reduced to writing within thirty (30) school days of its occurrence or discovery, whichever is later and exclusive of the summer vacation

period, shall not be placed in the file. This does not preclude the practice by the Administration of keeping a record of a series of relatively minor incidents. The bargaining unit member shall be warned that continuation of these offenses shall result in a notation being placed in the bargaining unit member's file. Before such a record may be used as part of any action against a bargaining unit member, it must be placed in the bargaining unit member's file in accordance with paragraph 2 above.

B. Bargaining Unit Member Evaluation

1. No bargaining unit member shall suffer any professional disadvantages by reason of his or her membership in the Association or participation in its lawful activities.

2. Definition of Covered Teachers

For the 2011-12 school year, these revisions will apply only to classroom teachers of common branch subjects or English language arts or mathematics in grades four through eight. For the 2012-13 school year and beyond, these revisions will apply to all classroom teachers.

3. Ensuring Accurate Teacher and Student Data

The District shall provide accurate data to the State Education Department (the "SED") in a format and timeline prescribed by the Commissioner. The District shall also provide an opportunity for every covered teacher to verify the subjects and/or student rosters assigned to him/her. The District shall designate the Superintendent as the Data Coordinator who shall be in charge of collecting the required data, overseeing changes in and maintenance of the local data management systems, and ensuring the accuracy of the data. The Data Coordinator shall have the authority to assign tasks and deadlines, as required.

4. Reporting Individual Subcomponent Scores

The Data Coordinator (who shall not be a unit member) shall be responsible for reporting to the SED the individual subcomponent scores and the total composite effectiveness score for each covered classroom teacher and principal/instructional administrator in the District, and shall do so in a format and timeline prescribed by the Commissioner. Covered teachers will be afforded the opportunity to verify the final data attributed to them within five (5) school days before it is sent to the SED.

5. <u>Development, Security and Scoring of Assessments</u>

The Data Coordinator shall be responsible for overseeing the assessment development, security, and scoring processes utilized by the District and shall take steps to ensure that any assessments and/or measures used to evaluate teachers are not disseminated to students before administration, and that teachers and principals/instructional administrators do not have a vested interest in the outcome of the assessments they score. Beginning with the 2012-2013 school year, such local assessments will be submitted to the Superintendent no later than October 1.

Local Assessment Determination

Local assessments will be selected by the grade level and/or subject area teachers who teach each course, working with the principals/instructional administrators to ensure comparability, validity, rigor, degree to which the assessment can be aligned to State standards, and degree to which the assessment(s) match classroom instruction.

The principal/instructional administrator will provide the superintendent with the agreed upon local assessment plan for all subject areas/grade levels located within the school.

If no acceptable outcome can be agreed upon by the principal/instructional administrators and teachers, a committee will be formed to make recommendations for revisions necessary for final approval. The review committee should be comprised of a department chair (if applicable), teacher(s), principal, superintendent's designee, and a union delegate. The committee's recommendation must be submitted to the Superintendent no later than October 16.

Final approval of the assessment system must come from the superintendent in the form of official certification to the state.

Local Assessment Point Distribution

The local assessment score of each student will include multiple measures and a teacher's final points for that course or grade will be the average of these local assessment scores. Each teacher's local assessment score will be converted to a 1-4 rating using a method mutually agreed upon between the District and the Association. This score will be the HEDI rating. The HEDI rating categories are:

1.0-1.4 – Ineffective

1.5-2.4 – Developing

2.5-3.4 - Effective

3.5-4.0 – Highly Effective

The final HEDI rating will then be converted to a 20-point score using the chart in Appendix A. This converted score will be the teacher's score for the "local assessment" portion of the teacher's APPR.

If Student Learning Objectives (SLOs) are utilized for a local assessment, score conversion shall be mutually agreed upon.

In cases where there are extenuating circumstances (i.e., student mobility, large number of students with IEPs, students with attendance problems, et al), subject to the Superintendent's approval, the evaluator may weigh individual student's scores or add points to the teacher's total score for the local assessment portion of their APPR. Documentation of any such circumstances will be maintained by the District.

6. Details of the District's Evaluation System

Teachers' performance will be assessed using multiple measures grounded in the New York State Teaching Standards. The Marzano Rubric will be used to assess teachers' professional practice. Evidence for evaluations will come from teacher self-evaluation, formal classroom observations, walkthrough observations, teacher created materials, and other resources provided by the teacher. The responsibility for gathering evidence of teachers' performance is shared by the administration and teachers. Both must demonstrate a commitment to providing a complete and accurate picture of a teacher's professional performance.

Per the District's Collective Bargaining Agreement, probationary teachers will receive a formal classroom observation two (2) times per year. The observation cycle will include a pre- and post-observation conference and a full period classroom observation of no less than one instructional period. Evidence gathered during each formal observation will be used in the annual summative evaluation. Walkthrough observations for probationary employees will be at the discretion of the Administration, but will not commence until there has been at least one (1) formal observation.

Generally speaking, tenured teachers will receive a formal classroom observation cycle once every three (3) years. In addition, administrators will conduct a minimum of two (2) walkthrough evaluations of no less than fifteen (15) minutes each school year. Walkthrough observations may include a pre and/or a post conference. Walkthrough observations must be announced to the teacher by the Friday before the week of the walkthrough. Teachers will be given one (1) walkthrough pass per year to be used at their discretion. Evidence gathered from both the formal and informal observations will be used in the annual summative evaluation. However, this does not preclude the administrator from conducting more formal or walk-through observations. It is expected that a teacher who is deemed Ineffective or Developing will be subject to a greater number of observations than one who has earned a rating of Effective or Highly Effective, and at least one traditional formal observation will

be conducted during the year for any teacher who will receive a Developing or Ineffective rating. A staff member may request a formal observation in place of one walkthrough.

Every teacher will have one (1) unannounced walkthrough evaluation each school year.

All observations will be followed within seven (7) days by a conference during which the draft evaluations will be discussed. At that meeting, all modifications will be agreed upon and the evaluator and teacher will sign off on the observation cycle sheet. The final form will be printed and presented to the employee upon its completion.

Observations shall be scheduled to avoid atypical conditions and events such as testing, holidays, or other circumstances which, in the bargaining unit member's judgment, would not give a faithful picture of classroom performance.

Further evidence for summative evaluations will be gathered throughout the year via a variety of other resources. Evidence for each teacher will be systematically organized using a method mutually agreed upon by the Association and the District. Each Teacher will receive a final average score on the 1-4 rubric rating scale. This score is converted to a HEDI rating. The HEDI rating categories are:

1.0-1.4 – Ineffective

1.5-2.4 – Developing

2.5-3.4 – Effective

3.5-4.0 – Highly Effective

The following weighted system will be used to derive the HEDI rating:

Domain	Sub-Component	Evidence	Percentage Weight
Domain I: Classroom Strategies and Behaviors	 Communicating Learning Goals and Feedback Establishing Rules and Procedures Helping Students Interact with New Knowledge Helping Students Practice and Deepen New Knowledge Helping Students Generate and Test Hypotheses Engaging Students Recognizing Adherence to Rules and Procedures Establishing and Maintaining Effective Relationships with Students Communicating High- Expectations for All Students 	Teacher Self-Evaluation Formal Classroom Observation Walk-Through Observations Teacher-Created Materials (i.e., lesson plans, unit plans, projects, tests) Other resources provided by teacher or gathered by the administrator	68%
	Planning and Preparing Lessons and Units Planning and Preparing for Use of Resources and Technology Planning and Preparing for the Needs of English Language Learners Planning and Preparing for the Needs of Students Receiving Special Education Planning and Preparing for the Needs of Students Who Lack Support for Schooling	Teacher Self-Evaluation Formal Classroom Observation Walk-Through Observations Teacher-Created Materials (i.e., lesson plans, unit plans, projects, tests) Written communications Student Management System (i.e., grade book, discipline referrals) Other resources provided by teacher or gathered by the administrator	14%

Domain 3: Reflecting on Teaching	Evaluating Personal Performance Developing and Implementing a Professional Growth Plan	Teacher Self-Evaluation Goal Meeting(s) with Principal Other resources provided by teacher or gathered by the administrator	8%
Domain 4: Collegiality and Professionalism	Promoting a Positive Environment Promoting Exchange of Ideas and Strategies Promoting District and School Development	Teacher Self-Evaluation Informal observation during faculty, grade level, department, and committee meetings Written Communication Other resources provided by teacher or gathered by the administrator	10%

Marzano Point Conversion

Conversion to the New York State Ratings Categories

The teacher's status score reflects his/her overall understanding and application of the Art and Science of Teaching framework across the Marzano Causal Evaluation Model Four Domains: Domain 1: Classroom Strategies and Behaviors; Domain 2: Planning and Preparing; Domain 3: Reflecting on Teaching; Domain 4: Collegiality and Professionalism.

The following steps outline the process used to calculate status score. The Status Score aggregates teachers' ratings across all observed elements within the framework to result in a score.

- 1. Using the Domain Forms, rate observed elements at each of the following levels: Innovating (4), Applying (3), Developing (2), Beginning (1), and Not Using (0)
- 2. Count the number of ratings at each level for each of the four domains.
- 3. For each domain, use the percentage weight as described in the above chart.
- 4. For each domain, apply the results from Step 3 to the description for each level on the Proficiency Scale (based on teacher's experience level). This is a domain proficiency score and will be a number between 1 and 4.
- 5. Using the four domain frequency scores, compute the weighted average to obtain the Status Score. The 3 Category Proficiency Scales can be used to determine a numerical value that

represents a proficiency score for each domain. Each domain will be weighted to obtain an overall Status Score. The domains will be weighted as follows:

a) Domain 1: 68%, 41 Elements

c) Domain 3: 8%, 5 Elements

b) Domain 2: 14%, 8 Elements

d) Domain 4: 10%, 6 Elements

This weighting system distinguishes the Marzano Causal Evaluation Model from traditional evaluation models in that Domain 1 carries the most weight as these strategies are directly related to student learning.

The weighted average of the 4 domain proficiency scores will result in a single number that can be translated into the following final scale:

a) Highly Effective (3.5 - 4.0)

c) Developing (1.5-2.4)

b) Effective (2.5 - 3.4)

d) Ineffective (1.0 - 1.4)

The final score will then be converted to a 60 point score using the chart in Appendix B. This converted score will be the teacher's score for the "other measures" portion of the APPR.

Teacher self-evaluation, reflection, and goal-setting are important components of the APPR process. By October 1st of each school year, teachers will complete a self-evaluation. Upon completion of the self-evaluation, each teacher will meet with the assigned evaluator. Together the evaluator and teacher will agree on 2-3 areas of focused professional growth.

Six days before the last scheduled school day, each teacher will participate in a summative evaluation conference with the evaluator. The purpose of this conference will be to review the evidence gathered throughout the school year, assess progress on the teacher's professional growth goals, and to arrive at the teacher's composite effectiveness score (0-60 points). This score will be combined with the subcomponent score for student growth on state assessments (or other comparable measures) and the subcomponent score for locally selected measures of student achievement to arrive at the teacher's overall composite score.

B. Details of Timely and Constructive Feedback Provided to Teachers

Professional Development

The district will support each teacher's development and ensure that all individuals receive appropriate professional development. Everyone within the system should focus on the goal of student achievement (as per APPR regulations). The district will identify in a timely manner standard areas that need improvement and will provide opportunities for growth.

Teachers' Growth and Goal Setting Plan Description and Form

- Completed by all teachers at the beginning of the school year, during staff planning time on an Administrative day.
- Goals are tied to New York State Standards and the Common Core Standards and/or adopted rubrics
- Intended to help all teachers grow professionally
- Not to be used as a disciplinary tool or to gather evidence to discipline a teacher
- Should be developed in collaboration with appropriate administrator(s)
- May be individual or group plan or combination

Staff Member(s)							
Schoo	ol						
Date _		Year	1	2	3	4	
1.	List the target goal(s) of the teachers' growth plan.						
2.	State the specific chiestives for an 1-/						
۷.	State the specific objectives for goals/growth.						ı
	i				*		
3.	Plan for attaining goals/growth (activities/timelines).						
	*						
4.	Indicators of attainment of goals/growth.		20				
			1				

Teachers' Assistance Plan (TAP) Description

- Teacher initiated and voluntary
- Based upon recommendations from evaluations and observations
- Contains SMART goals (Specific, Measurable, Attainable, Relevant, Timely)
- Promotes growth and achievement
- Not to be used as a disciplinary tool or to gather evidence to discipline a teacher
- Tied to New York State Standards and/or adopted rubrics
- Developed in collaboration with teacher and administrator

Staff M	lember	Grade Level/Subject Area
Admini	strator	Date
1.	List area(s) of assistance.	
2.	State specific objectives to be met.	
3.	Plan for assistance (peer mentors, a	ctivities, timeline).
4.	Administrator(s)' support to assist t activities, timeline).	eacher to improve performance (peer mentors,
5.	Criteria for measurement of progres	S.
6.	Date for review.	

Teacher Improvement Plans will be developed in collaboration with the assigned evaluator, the teacher who is being given the plan, and a representative from the Association (at the discretion of the teacher).

A Teacher Improvement Plan (TIP) must be determined no later than ten (10) school days after the date on which teachers are required to report prior to the opening of classes for the school year.

Teachers' I	mprovemen	t Plan				
Teacher				Admi	_ nistrator	
Subject/Grade Level Sco			core breakdown	breakdown Composite Score		
Date(s): Preconference		Observation	Observation(s) Coaching		hing	
Standards Chosen for Further Development	Action(s) to be Taken	Administrator's Responsibilities	Teacher's Responsibilities	Timeline for Progress	Indicators of Success	Improvements Made and Documented
				-		
Administrator's Signature: Date:				te:		
Teacher's Signature:					Da	te:
Representative/Witness Signature:					Da	te:
Or Teacher's Sig	Or Teacher's Signature Waiving Representation:			a .	Da	te:

C. Appeals of Annual Professional Performance Reviews

To the extent that a teacher wishes to issue an appeal, the following appeals procedure is established.

- 1. Appeals will be limited to the following situations:
 - a. A teacher completing the first year of a three-year probationary appointment may appeal only an ineffective APPR composite rating;
 - b. Any other teacher may appeal only an ineffective or a developing APPR composite rating;
 - c. Any teacher may appeal an improvement plan if and only if the plan was generated as the result of an ineffective or developing composite rating, in accordance with Section II, e, below.
- 2. The scope of any appeal will be limited to the following subjects:
 - a. The substance of the individual's annual professional performance review;
 - b. The District's adherence to the standards and methodologies required for such reviews, pursuant to Education Law 3012-c;
 - c. The adherence to the Commissioner's regulations, as applicable to such reviews;
 - d. with any applicable locally negotiated procedures regarding annual professional performance reviews or improvement plans, as limited by Section I, above; or,
 - e. The District's issuance and/or implementation of the terms of the teacher improvement plan under Education Law 3012-c in connection with an ineffective or developing rating.
- 3. A teacher may not file multiple appeals regarding the same performance review or teacher improvement plan. All grounds for appeal must be raised with specificity within one appeal. Any grounds not raised at the time the appeal is filed shall be deemed waived.
- 4. In an appeal, the teacher has the burden of demonstrating a right to the relief requested and the burden of establishing the facts upon which petitioner seeks relief.
- 5. The following timelines will be strictly adhered to unless extended by mutual agreement. Failure of the petitioner to meet a timeline will nullify the appeal; failure of the respondent to meet a timeline will allow movement of the appeal to the next level.

Level 1 – Evaluator

(Informal) Following a qualifying event, as defined in Sections I and II, above, the teacher shall be encouraged and shall be entitled to schedule a follow up meeting to informally discuss with the evaluator any and all related issues.

(Formal) Any appeal must be submitted to the evaluator in writing no later than ten (10) school days of the date when the teacher receives his/her annual professional performance review. If a teacher is challenging the issuance or implementation of a teacher improvement plan, the appeal must be submitted in writing within ten (10) school days of issuance or of the time when the teacher knew or should have known of an alleged implementation breach of such plan.

When filing an appeal, the teacher must submit a detailed written description of the specific grounds for the appeal as well as the performance review and/or improvement plan being challenged. Along with the appeal, all supporting documentation must be submitted, or specifically noted if pending. Any grounds for appeal or any supporting documentation/information not submitted or noted at the time the appeal is filed shall not be considered.

Within ten (10) school days of receipt of an appeal, the evaluator responsible for the issue(s) being appealed must submit a detailed written response to the appeal. Along with the response, all supporting documentation must be submitted, or specifically noted if pending, as well as any additional documents or materials relevant to the response. Any supporting documentation/information not submitted or noted at the time the response is issued shall not be considered in the deliberations related to the resolution of the appeal. The teacher initiating the appeal, and the Teachers' Association President, shall receive copies of the response and any and all additional information submitted with the response.

<u>Level 2 – Superintendent</u>

Within five (5) school days of receipt of the Level 1 response, if a teacher is not satisfied with such response the teacher must submit the appeal to the Superintendent of Schools, or the Superintendent's designee. (If the Superintendent was the evaluator at Level 1, this Level 2 appeal must go to the Superintendent's designee.) The Superintendent or designee will be provided all documentation submitted in both the appeal and the evaluator's response.

Within five (5) school days of receipt of the teacher's appeal, the Superintendent or designee will conduct a hearing at which the teacher (and representative at the option of the teacher) and the evaluator (and representative at the option of the evaluator) will be allowed to present oral arguments in support of the appeal and the response, respectively.

Within five (5) school days of the Superintendent hearing, the Superintendent or designee will issue a written determination to the teacher, the Teachers' Association President, and the evaluator.

Level 3 - Panel

Within five (5) school days of receipt of the Level 2 determination, if a teacher is not satisfied with such determination and if the Teachers' Association deems the appeal meritorious, the Association must submit the appeal to a bipartisan panel* comprised of two (2) teacher representatives and two (2) administration representatives. The panel will be provided the entire appeals record; however, any information identifying the appellant or the appellant's district, evaluator or superintendent will be redacted prior to receipt by the panel. Further, the anonymity of the panel members will be protected to the extent possible throughout this procedure.

Within five (5) school days of receipt of the Association's appeal, the panel will jointly conduct a paper review and deliberation of the matter, and will issue a written recommendation for resolution to the Teachers' Association President and the Superintendent of Schools or designee. The recommendation may be to deny the appeal, to sustain the appeal and grant the remedy sought, or to sustain the appeal and modify the remedy; further, reasoning for the recommendation, as well as dissenting opinions, if any, will be included with the recommendation.

*Upon ratification of this appeals procedure by both the Teachers' Association and the District, each party will designate at least one and not more than two representatives as SLL regional panelists. Those individuals will be provided training regarding APPR legislation and regulations and will be expected to be available to serve on panels as needed for appeals in other SLL districts that utilize this appeals procedure. The SLL BOCES and Regional NYSUT Office will maintain a computerized listing of all representatives from which a random selection of panelists can be obtained. Whenever such a panel is convened, the four panelists must be from four different districts', and none can be from the appellant's district. Panelist costs will be shared by the Associations and by the Districts.

Level 4 – Superintendent

Within five (5) school days of receipt of the Level 3 recommendation for resolution, the Superintendent of Schools or designee will give due consideration to the panel's recommendation and will issue a final and binding decision, in writing, to the appellant, to the Teachers' Association, and to the panel members. Whether the appeal is denied, sustained, or modified, such decision will set forth the reasons and factual basis for each determination on each of the specific grounds raised in the appeal. If the appeal is sustained, the Superintendent or designee may set aside or modify a rating or improvement plan or order a new evaluation or improvement plan if procedures have been violated.

- 6. The entire appeals record will be part of the teacher's APPR.
- 7. This appeals procedure constitutes the exclusive means for initiating, reviewing, and resolving any and all appeals within the scope of Sections I and II, above. A teacher may not resort to any other contractual grievance procedure for the resolution of these appeals, except as otherwise authorized by law.

42

8. Nothing in this appeals procedure will restrict the right of the district or the obligation of the teacher to proceed in accordance with otherwise standard practice, e.g., implementation of an improvement plan or denial/granting of tenure, while an appeal is pending.

D. Duration and Nature of Training Provided to Evaluators and Lead Evaluators

- 1. The "lead evaluator" is the administrator who is primarily responsible for a teacher's APPR composite rating. The term "evaluator" shall include any administrator who conducts an observation or evaluation of a teacher.
- 2. All evaluators shall successfully complete a training course that meets the minimum requirements prescribed by the law and shall include application and use of teacher practice rubrics selected for use by the parties in evaluations.
- 3. To be deemed a district certified lead evaluator one must successfully complete a training course meeting the minimum requirements prescribed in the law and regulations.
- 4. Other details of the District's training for evaluators, lead evaluators, and appeals panel members, including the duration and nature of such training, the process for certifying lead evaluators, and issues related to the particular practice rubrics selected by the parties, may need to be negotiated at a later time.
- Nothing herein shall be construed to prohibit an evaluator who is properly certified by the State as a school administrator from conducting classroom observations or school visits as part of an annual professional performance review under Chapter 103 prior to completion of the training required by said Chapter or the regulations thereunder, as long as such training is successfully completed prior to completion of the annual professional performance review.

E. Hold Harmless Provision

The parties agree to a "hold harmless" provision for all Ineffective ratings to enable all teachers and district administrators to learn from their individual experiences, and make necessary modifications for a fair and valid system. For the 2012-2013 school year, all classroom teachers who have an Ineffective overall APPR rating will be held harmless for the 2012-2013 school year only. The phrase "hold harmless" shall mean that the District shall not use an overall Ineffective HEDI rating as a means for an expedited hearing process or as evidence in a hearing process. A teacher receiving an Ineffective rating is still subject to a TIP.

F. The Association and the District agree to meet annually in June to discuss changes to the Annual Professional Performance Review of teachers covered under 3012 (c) of Education Law.

G. Discipline/Dismissal

- 1. Should it become necessary to officially reprimand or censure, fine, suspend without pay or dismiss a teacher, progressive discipline involving the following procedure will be followed:
 - a. Bargaining unit members shall have been informed of the performance standard expected in all areas of responsibility.
 - b. Bargaining unit members shall have been notified in writing of his/her failure to meet standard(s).
 - c. District shall substantiate that despite warning teacher has failed to correct deficiency.
 - d. Bargaining unit members shall receive supervisory assistance when needed.
- 2. Exceptions to the above procedure shall be as follows:
 - a. Conviction of a felony.
 - b. Proof of being under the influence of alcohol, illegal drugs or hallucinogens while on school grounds during the school day or at any time while supervising students on an assigned or voluntary basis in connection with school-sponsored activities.
 - c. Failure to maintain certification, or failure to obtain certification within statutory time limits.
 - d. Proven immoral behavior involving students.
- 3. In case of a grievance over discipline or dismissal, either the Association or the District may submit the matter to arbitration, through the grievance procedure. The decision of the arbitrator shall be limited solely to procedural questions, and shall be constrained from ruling on questions of administrative judgment, or degree of discipline imposed. With respect to discipline or dismissal, should the parties agree to elect Arbitration, it shall be the sole and exclusive remedy available. It is further recognized that the granting of tenure is the sole prerogative of the Board of Education.
- 4. A decision by the District to deny tenure is not subject to the grievance procedure except under the following circumstances:
 - a. Failure of District to adhere to the evaluation procedure.
 - b. Failure to abide by the personnel file provisions contained herein.

<u>APPENDIX B - HEDI Conversion Chart - 20% Local Measures</u>

¥	Category	Conversion for Local Assessment Score
	Ineffective	
1		0
1.1		1
1.2		1.
1.3		2
1.4		2
	Developing	Control Control
1.5		3
1.6		4
1.7		5
1.8	2	5
1.9		6
2		6
2.1	,	7
2.2	*	7
2.3		8
2.4		8
Land the second of the second	Effective	
2.5		9
2.6		10
2.7		11
2.8		12
2.9	,	, 13
3		14
3.1		15
3.2		. 16.
3.3		17
3.4		17
	Highly Effective	
3.5		18
3.6		18
3.7		19
3.8		19
3.9		20
4		20

APPENDIX C - Conversion Chart - 60% Other Measures

	Category	t – 60% Other Measures Conversion score for composite		
	Ineffective 0-			
1.000		0		
1.008		1		
1.017		2		
1.025		3		
1.033		4		
1.042		5		
1.050		6		
1.058		7		
1.067		8		
1.075		9		
1.083		10		
1.092		11		
1.100		12		
1.108		13		
1.115		14		
1.123		15		
1.131		16		
1.138		17		
1.146		18		
1.154		19		
1.162		20		
1.169		21		
1.177		22		
1.185		23		
1.192		24		
1.200		. 25		
1.208		26		
1.217		27		
1.225		28		
1.233		29		
1.242		30		
1.250		31		
1.258		32		
1.267		33		
1.275		34		
1.283		35		
1.292		36		
1.300		37		
1.308		38		
1.317		39		
1.325		40		

1.333	41		
1.342	42		
1.350	43		
1.358	44		
1.367	45		
1.375	46		
1.383	47		
1.392	48		
1.400	49		
Det	veloping 50-56		
1.5	50		
1.6	51		
1.7	51		
1.8	52		
1.9	52		
2	53		
2.1	54		
2.2	54		
2.3	. 55		
2.4	56		
Ef	fective 57-58		
2.5	57		
2.6	57		
2.7	57 .		
2.8	57		
2.9	. 57		
3	58		
3.1	58		
3.2	58		
3.3	58		
3.4	58		
Highly	Effective 59-60		
3.5	59		
3.6	59		
3.7	. 59		
3.8	60		
3.9	60		
4	60		

APPENDIX D

Memorandum of Agreement

between the

Edwards-Knox Teachers' Association

and the

Edwards-Knox Central School District

The Edwards-Knox Teachers' Association and the Edwards-Knox Central School District agree to the following modifications in the evaluation process for the 2012-13 school year:

All probationary teachers will receive two formal observations including both a pre and post conference that covers a complete lesson or class period. One unannounced walk through will be done any time after the first formal observation.

All tenured staff will have one formal evaluation every three years which have been randomly assigned. One unannounced walk through will be completed in addition to the formal observation. On the off year of formal evaluations staff will receive two walk throughs with one of them being unannounced. A staff member may request a formal observation in place of one walk through.

All observations will be followed within 7 school days by a conference during which time the draft evaluation will be discussed. At that meeting all modifications will be agreed upon and the evaluator and teacher will sign off on the Observation Cycle Sheet. The final form will be printed and presented to the employee upon its completion.

During each observation Domain 1 will be completed and closed after the post conference. Domain 2 will remain open with modifications being made with each observation. Domains 3 & 4 will not be used this school year.

For the Association/Date

or the District/Date